
   

 

  

  

   

   

     

 

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

  

  

   
  

       

    

 

 

         

 

    

 

   

  

  

   

 

    
 

     

        

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

   

   

 

   

       

 

 

Morgan Rovetti, DCSteve Sisolak 
Member Governor 

Xavier Martinez, DC 

Member 
Margaret Colucci, DC 

Tracy DiFillippo, Esq. 
President Consumer Member 

Nicole Canada, DC John Bertoldo, Esq. 
Vice President Consumer Member 

James T. Overland Sr., DC 

Secretary-Treasurer Julie Strandberg 

Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 

Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

DATE: Thursday, April 16, 2020 TIME: 8:30 a.m. 

LOCATION: Telephone Conference Call 

Instructions for attending conference call: 

1. Call toll-free number: (888) 431-3632 

2. Enter access code: 3834106 

NOTE: Per Emergency Order 006 issued by Governor Sisolak on March 

22, 2020, there will be no physical location for this meeting. 

PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING AT THE BOARD’S OFFICE. 

NOTE: ALL AGENDA ITEMS ARE FOR DISCUSSION AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF ORDER, 

COMBINED FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD, OR PULLED OR REMOVED 

FROM THE AGENDA AT ANY TIME. 

AGENDA 

Call to order - determine quorum present. 

Pledge of Allegiance – Dr. Martinez 

Statement of Purpose – Dr. Canada 

Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments - No action. 

A. Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and at the end of each Board 

meeting; 

1 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov
http://chirobd.nv.gov


  

 

    

 

  

      

 

     

  

 

        

  

 

 

    

     

      

 

 

     

 

  

    

 

   

   

 

      

   

 

  

 

 

  

    

 

  

  

   

   

   

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

April 16, 2020 

B. Public Comment may also be taken at other such times as requested so long as the 

request that Public Comment be taken will not interrupt ongoing Board business; 

C. Depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the Board, a 

reasonable time limit may be set. The Board will not restrict comments based 

upon viewpoint; 

D. No action may be taken upon a matter raised during Public Comment until the 

matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which 

action may be taken. 

E. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial 

proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the Board may refuse 

to consider public comment as per NRS 233B.126. 

Agenda Item 2 Approval of agenda – For possible action. 

The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two or more items to 

accomplish business in the most efficient manner. An item may be removed from the agenda or 

discussion may be delayed relating to an item at any time. 

Agenda Item 3 Approval of the January 23, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible action. 

Agenda Item 4 Ratification of granting of DC licenses to applicants who passed the examination 

from January to March 2020 – For possible action. 

Agenda Item 5 Ratification of granting of CA certificates to applicants who passed the in-person 

and on-line examination on February 20, 2020 – For possible action. 

Agenda Item 6 Legislative Matters – For possible action. 

A. Strategies 360 – Dan Musgrove 

Agenda Item 7 Discussion and potential action regarding the Matter of Zakari Bissani DC - For 

possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241 to consider 

the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. Bissani) 

Agenda Item 8 Discussion regarding CBD-containing products - For possible action. 

Agenda Item 9 Committee Reports 

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 

B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Colucci) – For possible action. 

C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 

D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 

Agenda Item 10 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or amendments to NRS 634 

and NAC 634– For possible action. 

A. 2021 Board bill language 

B. NRS 634.090 

C. Discuss self-inspection rules 



  

 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

     

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   

 

 

 

    

 
 

 

April 16, 2020 

Agenda Item 11 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 

B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 

C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 

D. CA Exam Stats – No action. 

E. Self-Inspection Results – No action. 

Agenda Item 12 Board Counsel Report – No action. 

Agenda Item 13 Discuss annual staff evaluation of the Executive Director and evaluation and 

possible pay increase of the Licensing Specialist- For possible action. (Note: The Board may go 

into closed session pursuant to NRS 241 to consider the character, alleged misconduct, or 

professional competence of Ms. Canady). 

Agenda Item 14 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary actions.  

Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board determines there is no 

violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing direction to pursue the matter further 

– For possible action: 

A. Complaint 17-28S (Colucci) 

B. Complaint 18-13S (Rovetti) 

C. Complaint 18-15S (Canada) 

D. Complaint 18-17S (Canada) 

E. Complaint 19-03S (Canada) 

F. Complaint 19-07S (Colucci) 

G. Complaint 19-11S (Colucci) 

H. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 

I. Complaint 19-13N (Martinez) 

J. Complaint 19-14N (Martinez) 

K. Complaint 19-16S (Canada) 

L. Complaint 19-17S (Canada) 

M. Complaint 19-18N  (Martinez) 

N. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 

O. Complaint 20-02S (Colucci) 

P. Complaint 20-03N (Rovetti) 

Q. Complaint 20-04N (Colucci) 

R. Complaint 20-05S (Colucci) 

S. Complaint 20-06S (Canada) 

Agenda Item 15 Public Interest Comments – No action. 

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic NOT on today’s agenda 
and may be limited to 3 minutes. 

Agenda Item 16 Adjournment – For possible action. 



  

 

  

    
 

  

   
 

    

 

 

  

 

 

    

 

 

        

      

  

 

 

April 16, 2020 

Per Emergency Order 006 issued by Governor Sisolak on 

March 22, 2020, Board Agendas are only posted at the following locations: 
Office of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada – Reno, Nevada 

The Website for the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada – www.chirobd.nv.gov 

Nevada Public Notices Website- www.notice.nv.gov 

Board Meeting Agendas and Minutes are posted on our website: www.chirobd.nv.gov 

Supporting meeting material may be obtained by contacting the Board by phone, fax or email.  You 

may directly contact Julie Strandberg, Executive Director, at 775-688-1921 or 

chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov. 

Members of the public that require special accommodations or assistance at the meetings must notify 

the Board office 48 hours prior to the meeting date. 

Note: “A request for notice lapses 6 months after it is made”: NRS 241.020.3(b). Mailing a copy 
of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board meeting agendas will not be continued unless a request for 
reinstatement on the mailing list is submitted in writing every 6 months. 

mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov
www.chirobd.nv.gov
https://Website-www.notice.nv.gov
www.chirobd.nv.gov


CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments – No action. 

A. Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and at the end of each Board 
meeting; 

B.  Public Comment may also be taken at other such times as requested so long as 
the request that Public Comment be taken will not interrupt ongoing Board 
business; 

C.   Depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the Board, a 
reasonable  time limit may be set. The Board will not restrict comments based 
upon viewpoint; 

 D.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised during Public Comment until the 
matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon 
which action may be taken. 

E.  Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding 
that may affect the due process rights of an individual the Board may refuse to consider 
public comment as per NRS 233B.126.  

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes per person per topic 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The public may speak to the Board about any topic not on 
the agenda but no action may be taken. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 1   



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 2 Approval of Agenda – For possible action. 

  The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two or 
more items to accomplish business in the most efficient manner. An item may be 
removed from the agenda or discussion may be delayed relating to an item at any time. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Agenda items may be addressed out of order to 
accommodate those present. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2   



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE: Agenda Item 3 Approval of the January 23, 2020 Meeting Minutes. - For possible action. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Approve the minutes of the January 23, 2020 meeting 

as drafted. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3 



 
 
 Steve Sisolak 
 Governor 

 Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 Vice President 
Xavier Martinez, DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
Maggie Colucci, DC 
         Member 

  

Nicole Canada, DC 
Member 

James T. Overland Sr., DC 
Member 

Tracy DiFillippo 
Consumer Member 

John Bertoldo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
A meeting of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board was held on Thursday, January 23, 2020 

at the Grant Sawyer Building, Legislative Counsel Bureau, 555 E. Washington, Las Vegas, NV 
89101.  The meeting was originally scheduled to be held in Room 4412E, however was moved to 
Room 1100. 
    
 The following Board members were present at roll call: 
   Morgan Rovetti, DC, Vice President 
   Xavier Martinez, DC, Secretary-Treasurer 
   Maggie Colucci, DC, Member 
   Nicole Canada, DC, Member 
   James T. Overland Sr., DC, Member 
   Tracy DiFillippo, Esq., Consumer Member 
   John Bertoldo, Esq., Consumer Member 
 
 Also present were Board Counsel, Louis Ling, Esq. and Executive Director, Julie 
Strandberg.  
 

Vice President, Dr. Rovetti determined a quorum was present and called the meeting to 
order. 

 
Dr. Colucci led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.  Dr. Rovetti stated the Purpose of 

the Board. 
 

Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments - No action. 
Dr. Benjamin Lurie, CEO, Neck and Back Clinics requested that agenda item 11 be tabled due 

to not being able to meet with the Northwest Career Technical Academy staff to finalize the student 
program.  Dr. Lurie stated that while conducting defense expert witness testimony and record 
review, NRS 49.215 was addressed with regard to doctor, patient relationship and the privacy of 
records.  This case involves text messages between the patient and the doctor and they are claiming 
that the text messages are private under NRS 49.215. The statute references the definition of a 
doctor, however chiropractors are not referenced as a doctor.  Dr. Lurie asked Mr. Ling if 
chiropractic physicians are included in this statute or not, and what is the difference between a 
doctor and a physician?  Mr. Ling stated that when it comes to these privileges they have to be 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


January 23, 2020 

2 
 

strictly construed, so for the purposes of the doctor patient privilege a doctor is what the statute 
states, which does not include chiropractic.  Dr. Lurie requested that the Board consider adding 
chiropractors to NRS 49.215. 

Dr. Lurie stated that there are several chiropractic physicians selling liens for personal injury 
patients to third party investors and hedge fund companies.  Dr. Lurie indicated that he is working 
with a patient who was not aware that their lien was being sold and inquired whether there is 
anything the Board can do for public protection to inform a patient that their lien is being sold and 
who it is being sold to?  Dr. Lurie requested that the selling of liens be added to the next Board 
agenda.  Dr. Rovetti reminded the Board and the public that if an item discussed during public 
comment is recommended to be added to a future agenda, the item needs to be added by a Board 
member. 

 
Agenda Item 2 Approval of agenda – For possible action. 

Dr. Colucci moved to approve the agenda.  Dr. Martinez seconded, and the motion passed 
with all in favor. 
 

Agenda Item 3 Approval of the October 10, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible 
action. 

Dr. Colucci moved to approve the October 10, 2019 meeting minutes.  Ms. DiFillippo 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 4 Welcome new Board member(s) – No action. 
 Dr. Rovetti welcomed Dr. James Overland Sr. to the Board.  Dr. Overland gave an overview 
of his background. 
 
Agenda Item 5 Ratification of granting of DC licenses to applicants who passed the 
examination from September to December 2019 – For possible action. 

Ms. DiFillippo moved to approve the ratification of granting of DC licenses to those who 
passed the examination from September to December 2019.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the 
motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 6 Ratification of granting of CA certificates to applicants who passed the on-
line examination on December 17, 2019 – For possible action. 

Dr. Canada moved to approve the ratification of granting of CA certificates to those who 
passed the on-line examination on December 17, 2019.  Ms. DiFillippo seconded, and the motion 
passed with all in favor. 
 
 
Agenda Item 7 Discussion and potential action regarding signatures on the DC and CA wall 
certificates – For possible action. 
 Julie Strandberg explained that this agenda item is to inquire whether there is a better way 
to obtain Board member signatures on the wall certificates for those individuals who have passed 
the exams in the event not all Board members are present at the meeting.  Following discussion, 
the Board decided to not make any changes at this time. 
 
 



January 23, 2020 

3 
 

Agenda Item 8   Legislative Matters – For possible action. 
 Mr. Musgrove gave an overview of the status of the legislative seats.  Mr. Musgrove 
spoke about the Governor and the sunset subcommittee being inclined to move the Boards under 
Executive Branch oversight, possibly the Department of Business and Industry.  The committee 
did mention that they want the Boards authority preserved to protect the public. 
 
Agenda Item 9 PUBLIC HEARING for the adoption of a Regulation to Nevada 
Administrative Code Chapter 634 will begin at 8:45 a.m. at the Grant Sawyer Building, 555 
E. Washington Legislative Counsel Bureau, Room 4412E, 555 E. Washington Ave., Las 
Vegas, NV 89101.  – For possible action. 
 Dr. Rovetti opened the public hearing for R064-19 and asked for public comment.  Dr. 
Benjamin Lurie stated concern with the recommended 50 hours of continuing education not being 
sufficient to become certified in dry needling.  Dr. Lurie stated that in previous years there was 
discussion by a previous Board President and the past President of the NCA that continuing 
education courses were being taught over a weekend were insufficient. Dr. Lurie asked what had 
changed?  Mr. Ling confirmed that the legislature indicated the minimum could be 50 hours based 
on the training chiropractic physicians have already completed.  There were no other public 
comments and public comments was closed.  Julie Strandberg provided an overview of the proposed 
language regarding prorating the licensing fee and provided an estimate of the reduced revenue.  
Dr. Colucci recommended that the Board research how other Boards structure their renewal fees.  
Dr. Colucci referenced that many other states have adopted dry needling and 50 hours is the average 
number of continuing education hours required to become certified.  Dr. Colucci also stated that 
PACE courses are, on average 50-hour courses.  Dr. Martinez provided an overview of the revisions 
to continuing education.  Julie Strandberg inquired about the revised language in NAC 634.385 (3) 
“…. and concern a subject described in subsection 1,” which appears that staff would be required 
to review each continuing education certificate to ensure the course description complies with 
subsection 1 of NAC 634.385.  Mr. Ling confirmed that the majority of the PACE courses will fall 
in line with this regulation, however if there is a question staff should communicate with the 
continuing education committee. 

Dr. Martinez made a motion to approve the regulations.  Dr. Overland, Sr. seconded, and 
the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 10 Discussion and potential action regarding the presentation from the Nevada 
Department of Veterans Services – For possible action. 
The Board contacted Wendy Knorr with the Department of Veterans Services via telephone who 
provided the Board with an overview of the benefits and support available to veterans.  Ms. Knorr 
stated that Veterans Services is reaching out to healthcare professionals to request assistance with 
spreading the awareness to veterans. 
 
Agenda Item 11 Discussion and potential action regarding the approval of a program for 
students to work in a chiropractic physician’s office who are enrolled in their senior year at 
the Northwest Career Technical Academy - For possible action. 

Dr. Rovetti stated that this item would be tabled until the next Board meeting. 
 
 
 



January 23, 2020 

Agenda Item 12 Discussion and potential action regarding the policy relating to AB 319 – 
For possible action. 
 Mr. Ling explained that AB 319 passed during the 2019 legislative session and requires 
that licensing boards adopt a policy to allow a person with criminal history to petition the Board 
to review the criminal history to determine whether the criminal history would disqualify them 
from obtaining a license.  Dr. Rovetti recommended that the policy include a complete set of 
documents be received by the Board within 15 days prior to the Board meeting and the 
determination letter be sent within 15 days following the Board meeting.  Dr. Rovetti made a 
motion to accept the policy with the recommended revisions.  Dr. Martinez seconded, and the 
motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 17 NCA Report – No action. 
 Dr. Marcia Tinberg was present on behalf of the NCA and welcomed Dr. Overland Sr. to 
the Board.  Dr. Tinberg stated that the NCA will be focusing on information, education, legislation, 
and membership.  The NCA held a successful conference in Reno and has many opportunities 
planned for this year.  The NCA will hold a chiropractor’s assistant review course on Saturday, 
January 25, 2020 in Las Vegas and will schedule a review course in Reno prior to the February 20th 
exams.  On February 21, 2020 the NCA will be sponsoring an educational seminar for 6 credits 
with the Institute of Brain Potential in Las Vegas, titled, “Changing How We Feel, By Changing 
What We Eat.”  The NCA is also sponsoring a 12-credit seminar in Las Vegas on June 6th and 7th 
featuring Dr. Mario Fucinari, who will discuss Medicare billing and coding specific to Nevada 
rules. 
 
Agenda Item 13 FCLB/NBCE Matters – For possible action. 

A. Selection of Board’s choice for FCLB Voting Delegate 
B. Selection of Board’s choice for FCLB Alternate Delegate 
C. Selection of Board’s choice for NBCE Voting Delegate 
D. Selection of Board’s choice for NBCE Alternate Delegate 
E. Attendance of Board Member(s) at the FCLB annual conference April 22-26, 

2020 in Denver, CO 
Following discussion, Dr. Rovetti made a motion that Dr. Overland be the FCLB 
voting delegate, Dr. Canada be the FCLB alternate delegate, Dr. Canada be the 
NBCE voting delegate, and Dr. Overland be the NBCE alternate delegate.  Dr. 
Martinez seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 

F. Selection of Board Member to participate in the Spring National Board Part 
IV Exam - May TBD, 2020  
Dr. Martinez and Dr. Rovetti expressed interest in attending.  Dr. Rovetti made a 
motion for her and Dr. Martinez to participate.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the 
motion passed with all in favor 

G. Selection of Board Member to participate in the National Board Part IV Test 
Committee meeting - June TBD, 2020 
Dr. Canada expressed interest.  Dr. Rovetti made a motion for Dr. Canada to 
attend.  Dr. Martinez seconded and the motion passed with all in favor. 

H. Selection of Board Member to participate in the Fall National Board Part IV 
Exam - November TBD, 2020 
Dr. Rovetti and Dr. Overland expressed interest in attending.  Dr. Rovetti made a 

4 
 



January 23, 2020 

motion for her and Dr. Martinez to participate.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the 
motion passed with all in favor. 

I. Other FCLB/NBCE matters. 
Dr. Colucci stated that there will be a resolution for the x-ray regulation, which 

is in accordance with the ACA and the Choose Wisely campaign, which provides 
recommendations that support doctors and patients in making choices about their 
care. 

Dr. Colucci announced that the NBCE donated $600,000 to the F4CP, which 
will be launched at the Parker Seminar in Las Vegas, February 2020.  The NBCE 
also donated $1,000,000 to the Rand Corporation, which assists with the 
universities and chiropractic colleges. 
 

Agenda Item 14 Committee Reports  
A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 

Dr. Martinez stated he had nothing to report. 
B. Legislative Committee (To be reassigned) – For possible action. 
C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 

Dr. Rovetti reported that there are six active preceptors. 
D. Test Committee (To be reassigned) - For possible action. 

 
Agenda Item 15 Reassign Committees – For possible action. 
 Dr. Martinez stated that he would remain on the continuing education committee.   
 Dr. Rovetti recommended that Dr. Overland take over the legislative committee based on 
his work through the NCA.  Dr. Colucci stated that she would be interested in the legislative 
committee.  Dr. Overland recommended there be a co-chair and Dr. Rovetti explained that the 
Board would be required to abide by the open meeting law, which can be done, but it can be 
cumbersome.  Dr. Rovetti called for the vote and Dr. Colucci had the majority vote 4 to 3.  Dr. 
Rovetti stated that she would remain as the preceptor committee.  Dr. Rovetti recommended that 
Dr. Canada be appointed to the test committee and she accepted. 
 
Agenda Item 16 Proposed changes to NRS/NAC – For possible action. 

A. Change chiropractor to chiropractic physician. 
B. Revisions to NRS 634.090 (1) (b) – Instruction of subjects provided by the 

Council on Chiropractic Education. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 
2 and 5, that the applicant has a high school education and is a graduate from a 
college of chiropractic which is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic 
Education or which has a reciprocal agreement with the Council on 
Chiropractic Education or any governmental accrediting agency, whose 
minimum course of study leading to the degree of doctor of chiropractic consists 
of not less than 4,000 hours of credit which includes instruction in each of the 
following subjects: 
(1) Anatomy; 
(2) Bacteriology; 

             (3) Chiropractic theory and practice; 
             (4) Diagnosis and chiropractic analysis; 
             (5) Elementary chemistry and toxicology; 
             (6) Histology; 

5 
 



January 23, 2020 

             (7) Hygiene and sanitation; 
             (8) Obstetrics and gynecology; 
             (9) Pathology; 
             (10) Physiology; and 
             (11) Physiotherapy; and 

C. Revisions to NRS 634.090 Foreign schools or colleges accredited by the Council 
on Chiropractic Education with regard to the following: whose minimum course 
of study leading to the degree of doctor of chiropractic consists of not less than 
4,000 hours of credit. 

D. Tighten fee splitting regulations. 
E. Non DC ownership of chiropractic practices’. 

Mr. Ling described the Boards’ responsibility with respect to submitting a Board bill.  
Mr. Ling also explained that once the language is approved by the Board it will be provided 
to Mr. Musgrove to find a legislator to sponsor the bill.  Following discussion of each 
section, Ms. DiFillippo made a motion for Mr. Ling to draft language for the Boards 
consideration with respect to items A through E and bring it to the next meeting.  Dr. Colucci 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 

 
Agenda Item 23 Election of Officers – For possible action 

Dr. Rovetti announced that an election of officers will be held and she would be including 
her name in the running for president and turned the agenda item over to Mr. Ling. 

Mr. Ling opened the nominations for President.  Dr. Rovetti nominated herself.  Ms. 
DiFillippo nominated Dr. Colucci and she accepted.  Mr. Ling announced that Dr. Colucci had the 
majority vote 4-3.  Mr. Ling opened up the nominations for Vice President.  Dr. Martinez nominated 
Dr. Rovetti and she declined.  Dr. Rovetti nominated Dr. Martinez and he accepted.  Mr. Bertoldo 
nominated Dr. Canada and she accepted.  Mr. Ling announced that Dr. Canada had the majority 
vote 4-3.  Mr. Ling opened up the nominations for Secretary-Treasurer.  Dr. Martinez nominated 
Dr. Overland and he accepted.  Dr. Colucci nominated Dr. Martinez and he declined.  Dr. Overland 
was unopposed and accepted the nomination. 
 
Agenda Item 18 NCC Report – No action. 
 Dr. John Brown was present on behalf of the NCC.  Dr. Brown stated that the NCC is now 
a choice for the culinary provider.  Dr. Brown indicated that all members of the NCC were given 
a free membership to the Foundation for Chiropractic Progress (F4CP).  Dr. Brown stated that the 
NCC is in the planning stages to hold three conventions in 2020.  The 2019 convention featured 
Sherri McAllister and Ken Murkowski and was the NCC’s most successful convention to date 
with attendance growing each year.  Dr. Ken Murkowski confirmed to return for the April 2020 
convention in Las Vegas.  A convention is scheduled in Reno on June 13th and will feature Sherri 
McAllister, with others to be named.  The NCC will hold its fall 2020 annual convention in Las 
Vegas.  The NCC is working with an attorney to share legal and business information on their 
website and is planned to go live in March.  The NCC voted Dr. Teddy Sim as the chiropractic 
physician of the year. 
 
 
 
 
 

6 
 



January 23, 2020 

Agenda Item 19 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary actions.  
Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board determines there is 
no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing direction to pursue the 
matter further – For possible action:  

A. Complaint 17-28S (Colucci) 
Mr. Ling stated that a Settlement Agreement was sent to the DC’s attorney and the 
response is pending. 

B. Complaint 18-13S (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti stated that she is having difficulty contacting the parties involved, so this 
complaint is still under investigation. 

C. Complaint 18-15S (Jaeger) 
This complaint was reassigned to Dr. Canada. 

D. Complaint 18-17S (Jaeger) 
This complaint was reassigned to Dr. Canada. 

E. Complaint 18-18N (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez stated that this is an advertising violation that was immediately 
corrected by the DC and recommended dismissal.  Ms. DiFillippo made a motion to 
dismiss complaint 18-18N.  Dr. Rovetti seconded, and the motion passed with all in 
favor.  Dr. Martinez recused himself as the investigating board member. 

F. Complaint 19-01N (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez stated that this complaint was filed by an emergency room physician 
alleging that the chiropractic physician did not perform a valid CDL physical, 
however, following an in-depth investigation it was determined that the chiropractic 
physician was in compliance with the physical and recommended dismissal.  Dr. 
Canada made a motion to dismiss complaint 19-01N.  Ms. DiFillippo seconded, and 
the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Martinez recused himself as the 
investigating board member. 

G. Complaint 19-03S (Jaeger) 
This complaint was reassigned to Dr. Canada. 

H. Complaint 19-07S (Colucci) 
Dr. Colucci stated that the complainant alleged that the chiropractic physician acted 
as an expert outside the scope of chiropractic.  Dr. Colucci stated that she sees a 
potential issue, and has asked Mr. Ling to confirm. 

I. Complaint 19-09S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that the complainant indicated that the DC’s office was uncleanly, 
the waiting room was too small and it was flu season and people were going to get 
sick.  Dr. Canada visited the chiropractic physician’s office and confirmed that the 
office was clean.  Dr. Canada spoke with the DC who indicated that they had to 
dismiss the patient because they were making racial remarks to staff and 
recommended dismissal of the complaint.  Dr. Rovetti made a motion to dismiss 
complaint 19-09S.  Dr. Colucci seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  
Dr. Canada recused herself as the investigating board member. 

J. Complaint 19-10N (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez stated that the complainant filed the complaint two years after they 
suffered a cerebrovascular accident.  Dr. Martinez confirmed that the DC applied 
appropriate measures and nothing in the patient’s history indicated that the patient 

7 
 



January 23, 2020 

was at risk of a cerebrovascular accident and recommended that this complaint be 
dismissed.  Dr. Rovetti made a motion to dismiss complaint 19-10N.  Ms. DiFillippo 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Martinez recused himself as 
the investigating board member. 

K.   Complaint 19-11S (Colucci) 
Dr. Colucci stated that the complainant alleged that the DC accepted checks from 
them to pay their rent and has not paid the patient back.  Dr. Colucci left a message 
for the complainant and is waiting to hear back. 

L. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti stated that the complainant alleged unprofessional conduct and is still 
under investigation. 

M. Complaint 19-13N (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez stated that this complaint and complaint 19-18N are against the same 
DC alleging unprofessional conduct and is still under investigation. 

N. Complaint 19-14N (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez stated that the complainant alleged improper record keeping and is still 
under investigation. 

O. Complaint 19-15S (Jaeger) 
This complaint was reassigned to Dr. Colucci. 

P. Complaint 19-16S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that the complainant signed a loan for neuropathy treatment and 
potentially has buyer’s remorse and stated that they were not aware that they were 
seeing a DC, but a “regular doctor.”    The paperwork was in order and compliant.  
However, Dr. Canada stated that during her visit to the office the DCs license and 
the CAs certificates were not posted.  In addition, CA’s were performing modalities 
and Dr. Canada was not able to confirm that a DC was in the office.  This complaint 
is still under investigation. 

Q. Complaint 19-17S (Bertoldo) 
Mr. Bertoldo stated that this is a false advertising complaint and a letter will be sent 
to the DC. 

R. Complaint 19-18N  (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez referenced this complaint with complaint 19-13N. 

S. Complaint 20-01N (Martinez) 
Dr. Rovetti stated that this complaint has been reassigned to her. 

 
Agenda Item 20 Board Counsel Report – No action. 
 Mr. Ling did not have anything to report. 
 
Agenda Item 21 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 
D. CA Renewals-No action. 
E. On-line CA Exam Stats – No action. 
Julie Strandberg provided an overview of the executive director reports. 

 

8 
 



January 23, 2020 

Agenda Item 22 Financial Status Reports: 
A. Current cash position & projections – No action. 
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action. 
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action. 
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action. 
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison as of November 30, 2019 – No 

action. 
F. Budget to Actual at November 30, 2019 – No action. 
G. 2019 Audit – For possible action. 
Julie Strandberg provided an overview of the executive director reports.  Dr. Rovetti made a 
motion to approve the 2019 audit.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed with all in 
favor. 

 
Agenda Item 24 Correspondence Report – No action. 
There was nothing to report. 
 
Agenda Item 25 Public Interest Comments – No action. 
This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic NOT on today’s 
agenda and may be limited to 3 minutes. 

Dr. Peter Randall from the NCA introduced himself, but did not have any comments. 
 
Agenda Item 26 Adjournment – For possible action. 
Dr. Rovetti move to adjourn the meeting.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
April 16, 2020       ______________________________ 
        James T. Overland, Sr., DC 
        Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 

9 
 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 4 Ratification of granting of DC licenses to applicants who passed 

the examinations from January to March 2020 – For possible action 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Ratify granting of DC licenses to those who passed their 
examinations from January to March 2020. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 

  January    February    March 
  Kyle Ray Hemsley, DC  Timothy Alan Windsor, DC  Richard Lee Cole, DC 
  Chad Michael Downing, DC  William King Foshee, DC  Marlvin Show Chidziva 
       Matthew Daniel Simpson, DC 
       Edward Hayes Cunningham, DC 
       Kason K. Belnap, DC 
 
             
    

 
 

 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 5 Ratification of granting of CA certificates to applicants who 

passed their in-person and on-line examinations taken February 2020 – For 
possible action 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Ratify granting of certificates to those who passed their in-
person and on-line examinations on February 20, 2020. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    

On-line Exams = 90% passing In-Person Exams = 75% passing 
   CA Exam –   46% passed  CA Exam - 82% passed 
   Law Exam – 35% passed  Law Exam - 88% passed 
      
 
Maria Aviles-V Michelle Hunt Kim Price 
Alyssa Baker Denise Jones Stacy Renteria 
Guadalupe Bravo Tiffany Lange Rosa  Rodriguez 
Katelin Bullock Krishelle  Leavitt Maggie Rohrbaugh 
Luis Dejesus Joselin Lomeli Gisell Rueda 
Edith Duran Anna Menendez Joel Ruvalcaba-Sotelo 
Yessenia Elizalde Dora Morales Grace Sewell 
Velvet Garnica-Banenelli David Neeser Betsy Telles-Menendez 
Heather Goucher Lindsay Nelson Melissa Vazquez-Reyes 
Catherine Green Yanet Pacheco Jennifer Wurtz 
Taylor Hires-Caulk Bianca Papazis Gema Zataray 
Laura Hirsch Jessica Pena Eliana Zelaya-Espinoza 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 6 Legislative Matters – For possible action 

A. Strategies 360 - Dan Musgrove 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Dan Musgrove 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 7 Discussion and potential action regarding the Matter of Zakari Bissani 
DC - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241 to 
consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. Bissani) 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Please see the attached documentation. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7 
 







CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD OF NEVA
4600 KIETZKE LANE, SUITE M-245 

RENO, NV 89502 

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE AS A DOCTOR OF CHIROPRACTIC 
IN THE STATE OF NEVADA 

;}f;; 

JAN 13 2020 

RECEIVED
RENO, NEVADA 

 
89502 . 

PLEASE NOTE: FAILURE TO ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS COMPLETELY AND TRUTHFULLY WILL RESULT IN
DENIAL OF THIS APPLICATION. THE FEES ARE NOT REFUNDABLE.

PRINT OR TYPZ 1. FULL NAMA 

Zakari LAK'r)I Bl.SSf\Wl-
(FIRST) (MIDDLE) (LAST) A ,ltL 2. ALIASES __ ,_v._�----------------------------------

a *h
3. HOME ADDRESS ·; s, f · / ·7 

0D c I r-c..... l-<-

CITY t¼..tr-""\.e .. .._ sTATE� 0 zIp Bod-'i , 
4. MAILING ADDRESS t?i � \(g E.��r Y \ 0... t..,t.... 

(.. 
 C "

CITY Lo.. M §'- STATE ZIP '11 � '-l j WORK EMAIL 
CA: 

5. SOCIAL SECURITY NO.
TELEPHONE NO. ':J;). 0 ?j �e 0 (g '} i 

6. DATE OF BIRTH (9 PLACE OF BIRTH 1 � fl {_ ; p\.
7. ARE YOU A UNITED STATES CITIZEN? YES 

Sc....,.__ � 
lit- NO n IF YOU ANSWERED NO ARE YOU: (PLEASE CHECK ONE OF THE 

FOLLOWING.) 
Cl A QUALIFIED ALIEN (AS DEFINED IN 8 U.S.C.A. § 1641). 
Cl A NONIMMIGRANT UNDER THE IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT (8 U.S.C.A. § 1101 et seq). 

Cl AN ALIEN WHO IS PAROLED INTO THE UNITED STATES UNDER 8 U.S.C.A. § 1182(d) (5) FOR LESS THAN ONE YEAR. 
Cl A FOREIGN NATIONAL NOT PHYSICALLY PRESENT IN THE UNITED STATES. 
Cl OTHER - PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILED EXPLANATION. 

8. RESIDENT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA? A/ D IF YES, HOW LONG? _________________ _ 

9. DO YOU HAVE A NEVADA BUSINESS LICENSE? YES□ NOIKI IF YES, PROVIDE YOUR LICENSE NUMBER. ______ _ 

10. HAVE You EVER SERVED IN THE MILITARY? YEOm [] DATES OF SERVICE: FROM ______ TO _____ _ 

BRANCH (ES) OF SERVICE _______________________________ _ 

11. HAVE YOU EVER SERVED ON ACTIVE DUTY IN THE ARMED FORCES OF TH ED STATES AND SEPARATED FROM SUCH 
',.;,lJTSERVICE UNDER CONDITIONS OTHER THAN DISHONORABLE? __D_ YES NO

12. HAVE YOU EVER BEEN ASSIGNED TO DUTY FOR A MINIMUM OF 6 CONTINUOUS YEARS IN THE NATIONAL GUARD OR A RESERVE 
COMPONENT OF THE ARMED FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES AND SEPARATED FROM SUCH SERVICE UNDER CONDITIONS 
OTHER THAN DISHONORABLE? _D._ YES� NO

13. HAVE YOU EVER SERVED THE COMMISSIONED CORPS OF THE UNITED STATES PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE OR THE COMMISSIONED 
CORPS OF THE NATIONAL OCEANIC AND ATMOSPHERIC ADMINISTRATION OF THE UNITED STATES IN THE CAPACITY OF A 
COMMISSIONED OFFICER WHILE ON ACTIVE DUTY IN �NSE OF THE UNITED STATES AND SEPARATED FROM SUCH SERVICE 
UNDER CONDITIONS OTHER THAN DISHONORABLE? _L_J_ YES J:Z1 NO

14. RESIDENCE ADDRESSES FOR PAST FIVE 5 YEARS:

q 9 I b· --tv.. 130 C--rr t..l<., / T�.-+o� (D , fo J.� ( 
I 

15. NAMES 

� 
AND ADDRESSES OF ALL EMPLOYERS FOR PAST FIVE (5) YEARS: 

-f /µ_, C.-..,..r l Jov,.... Ce� Qo / 0 3 '-/ 3 r-.,_ L� "1, � J , tJ 
I 

,U,. /.,....;. •'--C>� l () 

l'lea:.<c: read qu<c:stinm, /! I 6 through # 18 cardull). If) ou ha\ c an) que�tion� ple.lSc ..:011t<1<.:t the Board. 

16. HAVE YOU EVER HAD DISCIPLINARY ACTION BROUGHT AG YO'lt7!A STATE BOARD OR ANY OTHER GOVERN\1ENTAL 

AGENCY, OR IS THERE ANY SUCH ACTION NOW PENDING? OEO IF YES, GIVE DETAILS AND FINAL DISPOSITION: 

'---------













































































 Steve Sisolak 
 Governor 

Margaret Colucci, DC 
 President 
 Nicole Canada, DC 
 Vice President 

ames T. Overland Sr., DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer 

 J

 

  

Morgan Rovetti, DC 
Member 

Xavier Martinez, DC 
Member 

Tracy DiFillippo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

John Bertoldo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
March 3, 2020 
 
CERTIFIED NO. 7019 1120 0001 0220 7076  
 
Zakari L. Bissani, DC 
91 E. Agate Ave., #207 
Las Vegas, NV 89123 
 

VOLUNTARY WAIVER OF STATUTORY NOTICE 
OF A MEETING OF THE 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 
 
 I, Zakari Larbi Bissani, DC, understand that the Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 241.033) 
grants to me a personal right to prior written notice of the time and place of a meeting whereas the 
Board will consider any one or more of the following matters:  my character, alleged misconduct, 
professional competence, or physical or mental health.  I understand that the Board must consider 
one or more of the above matters when it reviews the Application for License as a Doctor of 
Chiropractic in the State of Nevada. 
 
 I know that by law the Board must give me this written notice in one of the two following 
ways before it is allowed to consider my request at its next scheduled meeting unless I personally 
choose to give up my right to receive my notice in such a way: 

1. The Board must send the notice to me by certified mail at least twenty-one (21) working 
days before its meeting, or 

2. It must deliver the notice to me personally at least (5) working days before its meeting. 
 
I am aware that the next scheduled meeting will be held at 8:30 A.M. on Thursday, April 

16, 2020 in Grant Sawyer Building, Legislative Counsel Bureau, 555 E. Washington Ave., 
Room 1100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101, and I want the Board to address my Application for 
License as a Doctor of Chiropractic in the State of Nevada.  This waiver of rights expedites the  
 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


Board’s decision regarding my request, which is my wish in this matter.  Therefore, I waive my 
rights to the notice specified by the Nevada Open Meeting Law with respect to the Board’s April 
16, 2020 meeting. 
 

 
Please sign and return this form to the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada.   
 

 
   Signed on this ___11th_____________________Day of March, 2020 
 

   By: ________________  
_________________________________ 
      Zakari L. Bissani, DC 

 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 8  Discussion regarding CBD-containing products – For possible action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY:   James Overland Sr., DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Dr. Overland would like to discuss allowing chiropractic 
physicians’ to offer non THC hemp related products since gas stations, hair salons, etc are 
allowed to sell this product.  It is understood that there are DC’s currently 
recommending/selling these products. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 8 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 9 Committee Reports  

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Colucci) – For possible action. 
C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 
D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 9 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 10 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or amendments to 
NRS 634 and NAC 634– For possible action. 
 

A.  2021 Board bill language 
B.  NRS 634.090 
C.  Discuss self-inspection rules 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Please see attached documentation. 

A. 2021 Board bill language for review. 
B. NRS 634.090: The Board bill (AB457) of the 2019 Legislative session erroneously 

omitted language in NRS 634.090 as follows: (2) Has actively practiced chiropractic in 
another state for not fewer than 7 of the immediately preceding 10 years without having 
any adverse disciplinary action taken against him or her. 

C. Self-Inspection regulation rules as approved by the Legislative Commission.  Discuss 
penalty for not submitting by the deadline. 

 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 



BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
  

 Section 1.  NRS 49.215 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 As used in NRS 49.215 to 49.245, inclusive: 

  1.  A communication is “confidential” if it is not intended to be disclosed to third persons 

other than: 

 (a) Those present to further the interest of the patient in the consultation, examination or 

interview; 

 (b) Persons reasonably necessary for the transmission of the communication; or 

  (c) Persons who are participating in the diagnosis and treatment under the direction of the 

doctor, including members of the patient’s family. 

 2.  “Doctor” means a person licensed to practice medicine, dentistry, [or] osteopathic, or 

chiropractic medicine in any state or nation, or a person who is reasonably believed by the patient 

to be so licensed, and in addition includes a person employed by a public or private agency as a 

psychiatric social worker, or someone under his or her guidance, direction or control, while 

engaged in the examination, diagnosis or treatment of a patient for a mental condition. 

  3.  “Patient” means a person who consults or is examined or interviewed by a doctor for 

purposes of diagnosis or treatment. 

 Section 2.  NRS 634.017 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 “Malpractice” means failure on the part of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician to exercise 

the degree of care, diligence and skill ordinarily exercised by [chiropractor] chiropractic 

physician in good standing in the community in which he or she practices. 

 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 1 OF 22 



 Section 3.  NRS 634.020 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  The Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada, consisting of seven members appointed 

by the Governor, is hereby created. 

2.  The Governor shall appoint: 

 (a) Four members who are: 

  (1) Graduates of chiropractic schools or colleges giving a course of study embracing the 

following subjects: Anatomy, bacteriology, chiropractic theory and practice, diagnosis or analysis, 

elementary chemistry and toxicology, histology, hygiene and sanitation, obstetrics and 

gynecology, pathology, physiology and symptomatology; 

  (2) Licensed under this chapter; and 

  (3) Actually engaged in the practice of chiropractic in this State and who have been so 

engaged in this State for at least 3 years preceding their appointment. 

 (b) One member who represents the interests of persons or agencies that regularly provide 

health care to patients who are indigent, uninsured or unable to afford health care. This member 

may be licensed under the provisions of this chapter.  

 (c) Two members who are representatives of the general public. A member appointed pursuant 

to this paragraph must not be: 

  (1) A [chiropractor] chiropractic physician or a chiropractor’s assistant; or 

  (2) The spouse or the parent or child, by blood, marriage or adoption, of a [chiropractor] 

chiropractic physician or a chiropractor’s assistant. 

 3.  At least two of the appointees must have had a course in physiotherapy in a school or 

college of chiropractic. 

 Section 4.  NRS 634.035 shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 2 OF 22 



 1.  The Board shall adopt regulations establishing the qualifications a [chiropractor] 

chiropractic physician must obtain before he or she is authorized to perform dry needling. The 

qualifications adopted by regulation pursuant to this section must include, without limitation, the 

successful completion of didactic education and training in dry needling. 

 2.  As used in this section, “dry needling”: 

 (a) Means an advanced needling skill or technique limited to the treatment of myofascial pain, 

using a single-use, single-insertion, sterile needle, without the use of heat, cold or any other added 

modality or medication, which is inserted into the skin or underlying tissue to stimulate a trigger 

point. 

 (b) Does not include: 

  (1) The stimulation of an auricular point; 

  (2) Utilization of a distal point or nonlocal point; 

  (3) Needle retention; 

  (4) Application of a retained electrical stimulation lead; or 

  (5) The teaching or application of other acupuncture theory. 

 Section 5.  NRS 634.035 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  The Board shall keep a record of its proceedings relating to licensing and disciplinary 

actions. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 634.214, the records must be open to public 

inspection at all reasonable times and must contain the name, known place of business and 

residence, and the date and number of the license of every [chiropractor] chiropractic physician 

licensed under this chapter. The Board may keep such other records as it deems desirable. 

 2.  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection and NRS 239.0115, all information 

pertaining to the personal background, medical history or financial affairs of an applicant or 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 3 OF 22 



licensee which the Board requires to be furnished to it under this chapter, or which it otherwise 

obtains, is confidential and may be disclosed in whole or in part only as necessary in the course of 

administering this chapter or upon the order of a court of competent jurisdiction. The Board may, 

under procedures established by regulation, permit the disclosure of this information to any agent 

of the Federal Government, of another state or of any political subdivision of this State who is 

authorized to receive it. 

 3.  Notice of the disclosure and the contents of the information disclosed pursuant to 

subsection 2 must be given to the applicant or licensee who is the subject of that information. 

 Section 6.  NRS 634.080 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  An applicant for examination must file an application with the Secretary of the Board on 

a form to be furnished by the Executive Director of the Board. An applicant may take the 

examination any time after the Executive Director determines that his or her application is 

complete. 

 2.  An application must be verified and must state: 

 (a) When and where the applicant was born, the various places of the applicant’s residence 

during the 5 years immediately preceding the making of the application and the address to which 

he or she wishes the Board to mail the license. 

 (b) The name, age and sex of the applicant. 

 (c) The names and post office addresses of all persons by whom the applicant has been 

employed for a period of 5 years immediately preceding the making of the application. 

 (d) Whether or not the applicant has ever applied for a license to practice chiropractic in any 

other state and, if so, when and where and the results of the application. 

 (e) Whether or not the applicant has ever been admitted to the practice of chiropractic in any 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 4 OF 22 



other state and, if so, whether any discharge, dismissal, disciplinary or other similar proceedings 

have ever been instituted against the applicant. Such an applicant must also attach a certificate 

from the chiropractic Board of each state in which the applicant was licensed, certifying that the 

applicant is a member in good standing of the chiropractic profession in that state, and that no 

proceedings affecting the applicant’s standing as a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician are 

undisposed of and pending. 

 (f) The applicant’s general and chiropractic education, including the schools attended and the 

time of attendance at each school, and whether the applicant is a graduate of any school or schools. 

 (g) The names of: 

  (1) Two persons who have known the applicant for at least 3 years; and 

  (2) A person who is a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician licensed pursuant to the 

provisions of this chapter or a professor at a school of chiropractic. 

 (h) All other information required to complete the application. 

 3.  An application must include a copy of the applicant’s official transcript from the school 

or college of chiropractic from which the applicant received his or her degree of doctor of 

chiropractic, which must be transmitted by the school or college of chiropractic directly to the 

Board. 

 Section 7.  NRS 634.090 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  An applicant must, in addition to the requirements of NRS 634.070 and 634.080, furnish 

satisfactory evidence to the Board: 

 (a) That the applicant is of good moral character; 

 (b) Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 5, that the applicant has a high school 

education and is a graduate from a college of chiropractic which is accredited by the Council on 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 5 OF 22 



Chiropractic Education or is accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the United States 

department of education or the council on postsecondary accreditation. [which has a reciprocal 

agreement with the Council on Chiropractic Education or any governmental accrediting agency, 

whose minimum course of study leading to the degree of doctor of chiropractic consists of not less 

than 4,000 hours of credit. which includes instruction in each of the following subjects: 

  (1) Anatomy; 

  (2) Bacteriology; 

  (3) Chiropractic theory and practice; 

  (4) Diagnosis and chiropractic analysis; 

  (5) Elementary chemistry and toxicology; 

  (6) Histology; 

  (7) Hygiene and sanitation; 

  (8) Obstetrics and gynecology; 

  (9) Pathology; 

  (10) Physiology; and 

  (11) Physiotherapy; and] 

 (c) That the applicant has successfully: 

  (1) Completed parts I, II, III and IV, and the portion relating to physiotherapy, of the 

examination administered by the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners or its successor 

organization; or 

  (2) Completed an examination that is required to graduate from a college of chiropractic 

which is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education or which has a reciprocal agreement 

with the Council on Chiropractic Education or any governmental accrediting agency. Such an 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 6 OF 22 



examination must be: 

   (I) Administered by such a college; and 

   (II) Approved by the Board. 

 2.  The Board may, for good cause shown, waive the requirement for a particular applicant 

that the college of chiropractic from which the applicant graduated must be accredited by the 

Council on Chiropractic Education or have a reciprocal agreement with the Council on 

Chiropractic Education or a governmental accrediting agency. 

 3.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 4 and 5, every applicant is required to submit 

evidence of the successful completion of not less than 60 credit hours at an accredited college or 

university. 

 4.  Any applicant who has been licensed to practice in another state, and has been in practice 

for not less than 5 years, is not required to comply with the provisions of subsection 3. 

 5.  If an applicant has received his or her training and education at a school or college located 

in a foreign country in which the course of study consists of not less than 4,000 credit hours to 

produce a degree of doctor of chiropractic, the Board may, if the Board determines that such 

training and education is substantially equivalent to graduation from a college of chiropractic that 

is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education [and otherwise meets the requirements 

specified in paragraph (b) of subsection 1] , waive the requirement that an applicant attend or 

graduate from a college that: 

      (a) Is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education; or 

      (b) Has a reciprocal agreement with the Council on Chiropractic Education or a governmental 

accrediting agency. 

 Section 8.  NRS 634.105 shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 7 OF 22 



  An applicant for a license to practice chiropractic who has the qualifications prescribed in 

NRS 634.090 may, while waiting to take the Board’s examination but for no longer than 90 days, 

perform chiropractic, including, without limitation, chiropractic adjustment or manipulation, under 

the direct supervision of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician who is professionally and legally 

responsible for the applicant’s performance. 

 Section 9.  NRS 634.117 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, if a chiropractic physician who holds a valid 

and unrestricted license to practice chiropractic in another state or territory of the United States or 

another country has entered into a written or oral agreement to provide services to members of a 

visiting athletic team or organization, the chiropractic physician is temporarily exempt from 

licensure and may practice chiropractic in this State while providing services pursuant to the 

agreement to members of the visiting athletic team or organization who are present in this State 

for the purpose of engaging in competition or training. 

 2.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, if a chiropractic physician who holds a valid 

and unrestricted license to practice chiropractic in another state or territory of the United States or 

another country has been invited by the governing body of a national organization to provide 

services to persons participating in an athletic event or training sanctioned or operated by the 

organization, the chiropractic physician is temporarily exempt from licensure and may practice 

chiropractic in this State while providing services to such persons. 

 3.  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection and subsection 4, an exemption described 

in this section is valid for a period of not more than 10 days for each competition or training 

session. Upon the application of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician, the Board may grant an 

exemption of not more than 20 additional days for each competition or training session. 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 8 OF 22 



 4.  A chiropractic physician who is practicing chiropractic under an exemption described in 

this section shall not: 

 (a) Practice chiropractic at a medical facility; 

 (b) Provide services to persons who are not described in subsection 1 or 2, as applicable; or 

 (c) Practice chiropractic under such an exemption for more than 60 days in a calendar year. 

 5.  The provisions of this section do not apply to any contest or exhibition of unarmed combat 

conducted pursuant to chapter 467 of NRS. 

 6.  As used in this section, “visiting athletic team or organization” means an athletic team or 

organization which is primarily based at a location outside of this State. 

 Section 10.  NRS 634.123 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  The Board may issue a certificate to a properly qualified applicant to perform ancillary 

services relating to chiropractic, other than chiropractic adjustment, under the supervision of a 

[chiropractor] chiropractic physician. The Board shall specify the formal training, including at 

least 12 months of study or the equivalent, which such an applicant must have completed before 

the Board awards the applicant a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant. 

 2.  An application for the issuance of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant must include 

all information required to complete the application. 

 Section 11.  NRS 634.125 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 A chiropractor’s assistant may perform such ancillary services relating to chiropractic as he or 

she is authorized to perform under the terms of a certificate issued by the Board. Those services 

must be rendered under the supervision and control of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician. 

 Section 12.  NRS 634.127 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 No [chiropractor] chiropractic physician may supervise more than four chiropractor’s 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 9 OF 22 



assistants at the same time. 

 Section 13.  NRS 634.130 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  Licenses and certificates must be renewed biennially. Except as otherwise provided in 

subsection 10 or 11, each person who is licensed or holds a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant 

pursuant to the provisions of this chapter must, upon the payment of the required renewal fee and 

the submission of all information required to complete the renewal, be granted a renewal license 

or certificate which authorizes the person to continue to practice for 2 years. 

 2.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 10 or 11, the renewal fee must be paid and all 

information required to complete the renewal must be submitted to the Board by January 1 of: 

 (a) Each odd-numbered year for a licensee; and 

 (b) Each even-numbered year for a holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant. 

 3.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, 6 or 7, a licensee in active practice within 

this State must submit satisfactory proof to the Board that, during the 24 months immediately 

preceding the renewal date of the license, the licensee has attended at least 36 hours of continuing 

education which is approved or endorsed by the Board. 

 4.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, 6 or 8, a holder of a certificate as a 

chiropractor’s assistant in active practice within this State must submit satisfactory proof to the 

Board that, during the 24 months immediately preceding the renewal date of the certificate, the 

certificate holder has attended at least 12 hours of continuing education which is approved or 

endorsed by the Board or the equivalent Board of another state or jurisdiction that regulates 

chiropractors’ assistants. The continuing education required by this subsection may include 

education related to lifesaving skills, including, without limitation, a course in cardiopulmonary 

resuscitation. The Board shall by regulation determine how many of the required 12 hours of 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 10 OF 22 



continuing education must be course work related to such lifesaving skills. Any course of 

continuing education approved or endorsed by the Board or the equivalent Board of another state 

or jurisdiction pursuant to this subsection may be conducted via the Internet or in a live setting, 

including, without limitation, a conference, workshop or academic course of instruction. The 

Board shall not approve or endorse a course of continuing education which is self-directed or 

conducted via home study. 

 5.  The educational requirement of subsection 3 or 4 may be waived by the Board if the 

licensee or holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant files with the Board a statement of a 

chiropractic physician, osteopathic physician or doctor of medicine certifying that the licensee or 

holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant is suffering from a serious or disabling illness 

or physical disability which prevented the licensee or holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s 

assistant from completing the requirements for continuing education during the 24 months 

immediately preceding the renewal date of the license or certificate. 

 6.  The Board may waive the educational requirement of subsection 3 or 4 for a licensee or a 

holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant if the licensee or holder of a certificate submits 

to the Board proof that the licensee or holder of a certificate was in active military service which 

prevented the licensee or holder of a certificate from completing the requirements for continuing 

education during the 24 months immediately preceding the renewal date of the license or 

certificate. 

 7.  A licensee is not required to comply with the requirements of subsection 3 until the first 

odd-numbered year after the year the Board issues to the licensee an initial license to practice as a 

[chiropractor] chiropractic physician in this State. 

 8.  A holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant is not required to comply with the 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 11 OF 22 



requirements of subsection 4 until the first even-numbered year after the Board issues to the holder 

of a certificate an initial certificate to practice as a chiropractor’s assistant in this State. 

 9.  The Board may adopt regulations that provide for random audits of licensees and holders 

of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant to ensure compliance with subsection 3 or 4, as 

appropriate. 

 10.  The Board may waive the renewal fee for a licensee or holder of a certificate as a 

chiropractor’s assistant if the licensee or holder of a certificate submits proof to the Board that the 

licensee or holder of a certificate was in active military service at the time the renewal fee was 

due. 

 11.  The Board may adopt regulations that provide for the prorating or waiving of the renewal 

fee for a licensee or holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant if such prorating or waiving 

is based upon the date on which: 

 (a) The Board issues a license to practice chiropractic or a certificate as a chiropractor’s 

assistant; and  

 (b) Such license or certification must be renewed. 

 12.  If a licensee fails to: 

 (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 10 or 11, pay the renewal fee by January 1 of 

an odd-numbered year; 

 (b) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5 or 6, submit proof of continuing education 

pursuant to subsection 3; 

 (c) Notify the Board of a change in the location of his or her office pursuant to NRS 634.129; 

or 

 (d) Submit all information required to complete the renewal, 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 12 OF 22 



the license automatically expires and, except as otherwise provided in NRS 634.131, may be 

reinstated only upon the payment, by January 1 of the even-numbered year following the year in 

which the license expired, of the required fee for reinstatement in addition to the renewal fee. 

 13.  If a holder of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant fails to: 

 (a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 10 or 11, pay the renewal fee by January 1 of 

an even-numbered year; 

 (b) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5 or 6, submit proof of continuing education 

pursuant to subsection 4; 

 (c) Notify the Board of a change in the location of his or her office pursuant to NRS 634.129; 

or 

 (d) Submit all information required to complete the renewal, 

 the certificate automatically expires and may be reinstated only upon the payment of the 

required fee for reinstatement in addition to the renewal fee. 

 Section 14.  NRS 634.1305 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  A [chiropractor] chiropractic physician may: 

 (a) Ask each new patient who is 18 years of age or older if he or she is a veteran and document 

the response in the record of the patient; and 

 (b) Provide the contact information for the Department of Veterans Services to any such 

patient who indicates that he or she is a veteran.  

 2.  The Board may ask each applicant for the renewal of a license as a [chiropractor] 

chiropractic physician if the applicant performs the actions described in subsection 1. If such a 

question is asked, the Board must allow the applicant to refuse to answer. 

 3.  As used in this section, “veteran” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 417.125. 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 13 OF 22 



 Section 15.  NRS 634.135 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  The Board may charge and collect fees not to exceed: 

  
For an application for a license to practice chiropractic  ........................................... $200.00 
For an examination for a license to practice chiropractic  ........................................... 200.00 
For an application for, and the issuance of, a certificate as 
 a chiropractor’s assistant  ........................................................................................... 100.00 
For an examination for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant  ............................... 100.00 
For the issuance of a license to practice chiropractic  .................................................. 300.00 
For the biennial renewal of a license to practice chiropractic  .................................. 1,000.00 
For the biennial renewal of an inactive license to practice chiropractic  ..................... 300.00 
For the biennial renewal of a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant  ......................... 200.00 
For the restoration to active status of an inactive license to practice chiropractic  ...... 300.00 
For reinstating a license to practice chiropractic which has expired pursuant 
 to NRS 634.130 or has been suspended  .................................................................... 500.00 
For reinstating a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant which has expired 
 pursuant to NRS 634.130 or has been suspended  ..................................................... 100.00 
For a review of any subject on the examination  ............................................................ 25.00 
For the issuance of a duplicate license or for changing the name on a license  ............. 35.00 
For written verification of licensure or issuance of a certificate of good standing   ...... 25.00 
For providing a list of persons who are licensed to practice chiropractic to  
 a person who is not licensed to practice chiropractic  ................................................. 25.00 
For providing a list of persons who were licensed to practice chiropractic  
 following the most recent examination of the Board to a person who  
 is not licensed to practice chiropractic.  ....................................................................... 10.00 
For a set of mailing labels containing the names and addresses of the  
 persons who are licensed to practice chiropractic in this State  ................................... 35.00 
For providing a copy of the statutes, regulations and other regulations governing  
 the practice of chiropractic in this State to a person who is not licensed  
 to practice chiropractic   ............................................................................................... 25.00 
For each page of a list of continuing education courses that have been  
 approved by the Board   ................................................................................................... .50 
For an application to a preceptor program offered by the Board to graduates  
 of chiropractic schools or colleges  .............................................................................. 35.00 
For an application for a student or [chiropractor] chiropractic physician  
 to participate in the preceptor program established by the Board  
 pursuant to NRS 634.137  ............................................................................................ 35.00 
For a review by the Board of a course offered by a chiropractic school  
 or college or a course of continuing education in chiropractic  ................................... 50.00 
 

 2.  In addition to the fees set forth in subsection 1, the Board may charge and collect 

reasonable and necessary fees for the expedited processing of a request or for any other incidental 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 14 OF 22 



service it provides. 

 3.  For a check or other method of payment made payable to the Board or tendered to the 

Board that is returned to the Board or otherwise dishonored upon presentation for payment, the 

Board shall assess and collect a fee in the amount established by the State Controller pursuant to 

NRS 353C.115. 

 Section 16.  NRS 634.137 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  The Board shall establish a preceptor program to provide supervised clinical experience 

to students enrolled in colleges of chiropractic. 

 2.  The Board shall adopt regulations to carry out the preceptor program required by this 

section. The regulations must include, without limitation: 

 (a) The application procedure for participation in the preceptor program; 

 (b) Eligibility requirements for students which are in addition to the requirements set forth in 

NRS 634.1375; 

  (c) The form, content and provisions required for a preceptor agreement between a student 

and a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician; and 

 (d) Eligibility requirements for the approval of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician to 

serve as a preceptor which are in addition to the requirements set forth in NRS 634.1379. 

 Section 17.  NRS 634.1375 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  A student who wishes to participate in the preceptor program established by the Board 

pursuant to NRS 634.137 must: 

 (a) File with the Board an application in the form required by the Board; 

 (b) Pay the fee for filing an application required by NRS 634.135; 

 (c) Be enrolled in his or her final academic year at a college of chiropractic that meets the 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 15 OF 22 



criteria established in paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 634.090; 

 (d) Have completed all clinical work required by the Board; 

 (e) Enter into a preceptor agreement with a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician who is 

approved by the Board to act as a preceptor pursuant to NRS 634.1379; and 

 (f) Comply with any other requirements prescribed by the Board. 

 2.  The Board may approve or deny an application for a student who wishes to participate in 

the preceptor program and shall provide notice to the student of its decision. 

 3.  A student who is approved to participate in the preceptor program: 

 (a) May perform chiropractic, including, without limitation, chiropractic adjustment or 

manipulation, under the direct supervision of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician who is 

approved to act as a preceptor pursuant to NRS 634.1379. 

 (b) Shall not perform chiropractic as a participant in the preceptor program for more than 1 

year. 

 Section 18.  NRS 634.1379 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  A [chiropractor] chiropractic physician who wishes to act as a preceptor pursuant to the 

preceptor program established by the Board pursuant to NRS 634.137 must: 

 (a) File with the Board an application in the form required by the Board; 

 (b) Pay the fee for filing an application with the Board required by NRS 634.135; 

 (c) Hold in good standing a license on active status issued pursuant to this chapter; 

 (d) Have malpractice insurance as may be required by the Board; and 

 (e) Comply with any other requirements prescribed by the Board. 

 2.  The Board may approve or deny an application for a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician 

to act as a preceptor and shall give notice to the [chiropractor] chiropractic physician of its 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 16 OF 22 



decision. 

 Section 19.  NRS 634.216 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 The Board or any person who or other organization which initiates or assists in any lawful 

investigation or proceeding concerning the discipline of a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician is 

immune from any civil action for that initiation or assistance or any consequential damages, if the 

person or organization acted without malicious intent. 

 Section 20.  NRS 634.220 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to permit a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician to 

practice medicine, osteopathic medicine, dentistry, optometry or podiatry, or to administer or 

prescribe drugs. 

 Section 21.  NRS 634.225 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  A [chiropractor] chiropractic physician shall not pierce or sever any body tissue, except 

to: 

 (a) Draw blood for diagnostic purposes; or  

 (b) Perform dry needling, if the [chiropractor] chiropractic physician is qualified to do so 

pursuant to the regulations adopted by the Board pursuant to NRS 634.035. 

 2.  A [chiropractor] chiropractic physician shall not offer to engage in, advertise, solicit or 

otherwise claim to be able to perform acupuncture unless he or she is licensed to practice Oriental 

medicine pursuant to chapter 634A of NRS, except that a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician 

who is qualified to perform dry needling pursuant to the regulations adopted pursuant to NRS 

634.035 may offer to engage in, advertise, solicit or otherwise claim to be able to perform dry 

needling. 

  3.  As used in this section: 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 17 OF 22 



 (a) “Acupuncture” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 634A.020. 

 (b) “Dry needling” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 634.035. 

 Section 22.  NRS 634.227 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  A person who: 

 (a) Presents to the Board as his or her own the diploma, license or credentials of another; 

 (b) Gives false or forged evidence of any kind to the Board; or 

 (c) Practices chiropractic under a false or assumed name or falsely personates another licensee, 

 is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

 2.  Except as otherwise provided in NRS 634.105, 634.117 and 634.1375, a person who does 

not hold a license issued pursuant to this chapter and: 

 (a) Practices chiropractic in this State; 

 (b) Holds himself or herself out as a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician; 

 (c) Uses any combination, variation or abbreviation of the terms “chiropractor,” “chiropractic” 

or “chiropractic physician” as a professional or commercial representation; or 

 (d) Uses any means which directly or indirectly conveys to another person the impression that 

he or she is qualified or licensed to practice chiropractic, 

is guilty of a category D felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130, unless a 

greater penalty is provided pursuant to NRS 200.830 or 200.840. 

 3.  In addition to any other penalty prescribed by law, if the Board determines that a person 

has committed any act described in subsection 2, the Board may: 

 (a) Issue and serve on the person an order to cease and desist until the person obtains from the 

Board the proper license or certificate or otherwise demonstrates that he or she is no longer in 

violation of subsection 2. An order to cease and desist must include a telephone number with which 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 18 OF 22 



the person may contact the Board.  

 (b) Issue a citation to the person. A citation issued pursuant to this paragraph must be in 

writing, describe with particularity the nature of the violation and inform the person of the 

provisions of this paragraph. Each activity in which the person is engaged constitutes a separate 

offense for which a separate citation may be issued. To appeal a citation, the person must submit 

a written request for a hearing to the Board not later than 30 days after the date of issuance of the 

citation. 

 (c) Assess against the person an administrative fine of not more than $5,000. 

 (d) Impose any combination of the penalties set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (c). 

 Section 23.  NRS 634.240 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  In addition to any other remedy provided by law, the Board, through its President, 

Secretary or its attorney, or the Attorney General, may bring an action in any court of competent 

jurisdiction to enjoin any person who does not hold a license issued by the Board from practicing 

chiropractic or representing himself or herself to be a [chiropractor] chiropractic physician. As 

used in this subsection, “practicing chiropractic” includes the conducting of independent 

examinations and the offering of opinions regarding the treatment or care, or both, with respect to 

patients who are residents of this State. 

 2.  The court in a proper case may issue an injunction for such purposes without proof of 

actual damage sustained by any person, this provision being a preventive as well as a punitive 

measure. The issuance of such an injunction does not relieve the person from criminal prosecution 

for a violation of NRS 634.227. 

 Section 23.  NRS chapter 634 shall be amended to add the following new language: 

 1.  A business entity may not offer chiropractic services pursuant to this chapter unless: 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 19 OF 22 



 (a) The entity is registered with the Board pursuant to this section and regulations adopted 

pursuant to this chapter; and 

 (b) The services are conducted by a chiropractic physician who is licensed pursuant to this 

chapter. 

The business entity must file a registration application and pay a fee as prescribed by the 

Board by regulation.  

 2.  A registration expires on June 1 of each year.  A business entity that wishes to renew a 

registration must submit an application for renewal as prescribed by the Board on an annual 

basis before the expiration date and pay a renewal fee as prescribed by the Board by 

regulation.  The Board shall prorate the renewal fee for the first-year registration renewal based 

on the first day of the month that the business entity was registered with the Board.  An entity 

that fails to renew the registration before the expiration date is subject to a late fee as prescribed 

by the Board by regulation. 

 3.  A business entity must notify the Board in writing within thirty days after any change: 

 (a) In the entity's name, address or telephone number;  

 (b) In the entity's officers or directors;  

 (c) In the name of any chiropractic physician who is authorized to provide and who is 

responsible for providing or supervising the provision of chiropractic services in any facility 

owned or operated by the business entity. 

 4.  The Board shall impose a civil penalty as prescribed by the Board by regulation on a 

business entity that does not notify the Board as required by subsection 3 of this section. 

 5.  A business entity must comply with this chapter and Board regulations and must assure 

that all chiropractic physicians and chiropractor’s assistants who work in any facility owned or 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 20 OF 22 



operated by the business entity comply with this chapter and Board regulations. 

 6.  A business entity must establish a written policy and procedure for the secure storage, 

transfer, and access to the medical records of the business entity's patients.  This protocol must 

include, at a minimum, procedures for: 

 (a) Notifying patients of the future locations of their records if the business entity terminates 

or sells the practice;  

 (b) Disposing of unclaimed medical records; and 

 (c) The timely response pursuant to NRS chapter 629 to requests by patients or their 

representatives for copies of their records. 

 7.  A business entity must notify the Board within thirty days after the entity's dissolution or 

the closing or relocation of any facility and must disclose to the Board the entity’s procedure by 

which its patients may obtain their records. 

 8.  The Board may impose discipline consistent with this chapter if an entity violates any 

statute or Board regulation. 

 9.  This section does not apply to: 

 (a) A facility wholly owned by one or more persons licensed pursuant to this chapter; 

 (b) A sole proprietorship or partnership that consists of persons who are licensed pursuant 

to this chapter; 

 (c) A professional corporation or professional limited liability company, the shares of which 

are owned by persons who are licensed pursuant to this chapter; 

 (d) An administrator or executor of the estate of a deceased chiropractic physician or a 

person who is legally authorized to act for a chiropractic physician who has been adjudicated 

to be mentally incompetent for not more than one year after the date of the chiropractic 
 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 21 OF 22 



physician’s death or incapacitation; 

 (e) A medical facility regulated under NRS chapter 439; 

 (f) A medical doctor who is licensed pursuant to NRS chapter 630 or a doctor of osteopathy 

who is licensed pursuant to NRS chapter 633; or 

 10. A business entity and all owners thereof that offers chiropractic services pursuant to this 

chapter without complying with the registration requirements of this section are guilty of a class 

B felony. 

 
 

BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR THE 2021 SESSION FROM 
THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA  

PAGE 22 OF 22 



Agenda Item  

Section 7.  NRS 634.090 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 1.  An applicant must, in addition to the requirements of NRS 634.070 and 634.080, furnish 

satisfactory evidence to the Board: 

 (a) That the applicant is of good moral character; 

 (b) Except as otherwise provided in subsections 2 and 5, that the applicant has a high school 

education and is a graduate from a college of chiropractic which is accredited by the Council on 

Chiropractic Education or is accredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the United States 

department of education or the council on postsecondary accreditation. [which has a reciprocal 

agreement with the Council on Chiropractic Education or any governmental accrediting agency, 

whose minimum course of study leading to the degree of doctor of chiropractic consists of not 

less than 4,000 hours of credit. which includes instruction in each of the following subjects: 

  (1) Anatomy; 

  (2) Bacteriology; 

  (3) Chiropractic theory and practice; 

  (4) Diagnosis and chiropractic analysis; 

  (5) Elementary chemistry and toxicology; 

  (6) Histology; 

  (7) Hygiene and sanitation; 

  (8) Obstetrics and gynecology; 

  (9) Pathology; 

  (10) Physiology; and 



  (11) Physiotherapy; and] 

 (c) That the applicant has successfully: 

  (1) Completed parts I, II, III and IV, and the portion relating to physiotherapy, of the 

examination administered by the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners or its successor 

organization; or 

         (Removed 2019 Leg. Session)(2) Has actively practiced chiropractic in another state for 

not fewer than 7 of the immediately preceding 10 years without having any adverse disciplinary 

action taken against him or her. 

  (Added 2019 Leg. Session) (2)  an exit examination administered by a chiropractic 

college accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education whose examination is approved by 

the Board, or 

Other Proposed Language 

Idaho-Successful passage of the National Boards Parts which were in effect at the time of 

graduation from chiropractic college and physiotherapy. 

  (2) Completed an examination that is required to graduate from a college of chiropractic 

which is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education or which has a reciprocal agreement 

with the Council on Chiropractic Education or any governmental accrediting agency. Such an 

examination must be: 

   (I) Administered by such a college; and 

   (II) Approved by the Board. 

 2.  The Board may, for good cause shown, waive the requirement for a particular applicant 

that the college of chiropractic from which the applicant graduated must be accredited by the 



Council on Chiropractic Education or have a reciprocal agreement with the Council on 

Chiropractic Education or a governmental accrediting agency. 

 3.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 4 and 5, every applicant is required to submit 

evidence of the successful completion of not less than 60 credit hours at an accredited college or 

university. 

 4.  Any applicant who has been licensed to practice in another state, and has been in 

practice for not less than 5 years, is not required to comply with the provisions of subsection 3. 

 5.  If an applicant has received his or her training and education at a school or college located 

in a foreign country in which the course of study consists of not less than 4,000 credit hours to 

produce a degree of doctor of chiropractic, the Board may, if the Board determines that such 

training and education is substantially equivalent to graduation from a college of chiropractic 

that is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education [and otherwise meets the 

requirements specified in paragraph (b) of subsection 1] , waive the requirement that an 

applicant attend or graduate from a college that: 

      (a) Is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education; or 

      (b) Has a reciprocal agreement with the Council on Chiropractic Education or a governmental 

accrediting agency. 

 

 

 

       Completed parts I, II, III and IV, and the portion relating to physiotherapy, of the 

examination administered by the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners or equivalent; or 

         (Removed 2019 Leg. Session)(2) Has actively practiced chiropractic in another state for 

not fewer than 7 of the immediately preceding 10 years without having any adverse disciplinary 



action taken against him or her. 

  (Added 2019 Leg. Session) (2)  an exit examination administered by a chiropractic 

college accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education whose examination is approved by 

the Board, or 

Other Proposed Language 

Idaho-Successful passage of the National Boards Parts which were in effect at the time of 

graduation from chiropractic college and physiotherapy. 

   2.  The Board may, for good cause shown, waive the requirement for a particular applicant 

that the college of chiropractic from which the applicant graduated must be accredited by the 

Council on Chiropractic Education or have a reciprocal agreement with the Council on 

Chiropractic Education or a governmental accrediting agency. 

   3.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, every applicant is required to submit 

evidence of the successful completion of not less than 60 credit hours at an accredited college or 

university. 

   4.  Any applicant who has been licensed to practice in another state, and has been in 

practice for not less than 5 years, is not required to comply with the provisions of subsection 3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

https://ibol.idaho.gov/IBOL/BoardPage.aspx?Bureau=CHI 

 

 
TITLE 54  

PROFESSIONS, VOCATIONS, AND BUSINESSES 
CHAPTER 7  

CHIROPRACTIC PRACTICE ACT 

54-710.  LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT. Any person seeking to be 

licensed to practice chiropractic in this state who is licensed to 

practice chiropractic in another state must successfully complete the 

following requirements before a license to practice chiropractic will 

be issued. 
(1)  Each applicant must submit the fee set by board rules and a 

completed application to the board on forms furnished by the board 

that require proof of graduation from an acceptable school of 

chiropractic and that contains proof that the applicant has for five 

(5) consecutive years immediately prior to application practiced 

chiropractic and holds a valid, unrevoked, unsuspended license to 

practice chiropractic in a state, territory or district of the United 

States or Canada, and a national board of chiropractic examiner’s 

certificate. 

(2)  Each applicant must demonstrate that he possesses the 

requisite qualifications to provide the same standard of chiropractic 

care as provided by physicians in this state. The board may require 

further examination to establish such qualifications. 

History: 

 
Arizona 
 
32-922.01. Reciprocity; requirements 

A. The board shall issue a license to practice chiropractic under this section to an applicant who 

meets the following requirements: 

1. Holds a current license to practice chiropractic issued after examination by a licensing board 

in another state or country in which, in the opinion of the board, the licensing requirements are at 

least substantially equivalent to those of this state and the other state or country grants similar 

reciprocal privileges to chiropractors licensed in this state. 

2. Receives a grade of at least seventy-five per cent on the Arizona jurisprudence examination. 

3. Pays the original license fee of one hundred dollars. 

https://ibol.idaho.gov/IBOL/BoardPage.aspx?Bureau=CHI


B. The applicant shall pay the application fee prescribed by section 32-921 and present proof 

satisfactory to the board that: 

1. A license issued by any other state has not been sanctioned for any cause that is a basis of a 

sanction imposed by the board pursuant to this chapter, except for failure to pay fees. 

2. The applicant has not previously failed to pass the examination in this state. 

3. The applicant has been engaged in the practice of chiropractic continuously for not less than 

three of the five years immediately preceding the application.  

 
32-922.03. Licensure by endorsement; requirements 

A. The board may issue a license to practice chiropractic pursuant to this chapter by endorsement to 
an applicant who meets all of the following requirements: 

1. Has actively practiced chiropractic in another state or jurisdiction for at least five of the 
immediately preceding seven years. 

2. Has not had an adverse disciplinary action taken against a professional license issued by another 
state or jurisdiction. 

3. Receives a grade of at least seventy-five percent on the Arizona jurisprudence examination. 

4. On making application, pays to the executive director of the board a nonrefundable fee of not 
more than five hundred dollars as established by the board. 

5. Pays the original license fee as prescribed by section 32-922. 

B. The applicant shall present proof satisfactory to the board that: 

1. A professional license of the applicant issued by any other state or jurisdiction has not been 
sanctioned for any cause that may be a basis of a sanction imposed by the board pursuant to this 
chapter, except for failure to pay fees. 

2. The applicant has not previously failed to pass the examination in this state. 

3. The applicant qualifies for licensure as prescribed in section 32-921, except the applicant is not 
required to submit proof of obtaining a passing score on part III or IV of the examination conducted 
by the national board of chiropractic examiners. 

C. An applicant under this section is not required to pay the fee prescribed in section 32-921, 
subsection D. 

 

 



Agenda Item 10B 
 

 
https://ibol.idaho.gov/IBOL/BoardPage.aspx?Bureau=CHI 
 

 
TITLE 54  

PROFESSIONS, VOCATIONS, AND BUSINESSES 
CHAPTER 7  

CHIROPRACTIC PRACTICE ACT 
54-710.  LICENSURE BY ENDORSEMENT. Any person seeking to be 

licensed to practice chiropractic in this state who is licensed to 
practice chiropractic in another state must successfully complete the 
following requirements before a license to practice chiropractic will 
be issued. 

(1)  Each applicant must submit the fee set by board rules and a 
completed application to the board on forms furnished by the board 
that require proof of graduation from an acceptable school of 
chiropractic and that contains proof that the applicant has for five 
(5) consecutive years immediately prior to application practiced 
chiropractic and holds a valid, unrevoked, unsuspended license to 
practice chiropractic in a state, territory or district of the United 
States or Canada, and a national board of chiropractic examiner’s 
certificate. 

(2)  Each applicant must demonstrate that he possesses the 
requisite qualifications to provide the same standard of chiropractic 
care as provided by physicians in this state. The board may require 
further examination to establish such qualifications. 
History: 
 
Arizona 
 
32-922.01. Reciprocity; requirements 

A. The board shall issue a license to practice chiropractic under this section to an applicant who 
meets the following requirements: 

1. Holds a current license to practice chiropractic issued after examination by a licensing board 
in another state or country in which, in the opinion of the board, the licensing requirements are at 
least substantially equivalent to those of this state and the other state or country grants similar 
reciprocal privileges to chiropractors licensed in this state. 

2. Receives a grade of at least seventy-five per cent on the Arizona jurisprudence examination. 

3. Pays the original license fee of one hundred dollars. 

B. The applicant shall pay the application fee prescribed by section 32-921 and present proof 
satisfactory to the board that: 

https://ibol.idaho.gov/IBOL/BoardPage.aspx?Bureau=CHI


Agenda Item 10B 
 

1. A license issued by any other state has not been sanctioned for any cause that is a basis of a 
sanction imposed by the board pursuant to this chapter, except for failure to pay fees. 

2. The applicant has not previously failed to pass the examination in this state. 

3. The applicant has been engaged in the practice of chiropractic continuously for not less than 
three of the five years immediately preceding the application.  

 
32-922.03. Licensure by endorsement; requirements 

A. The board may issue a license to practice chiropractic pursuant to this chapter by endorsement to 
an applicant who meets all of the following requirements: 

1. Has actively practiced chiropractic in another state or jurisdiction for at least five of the 
immediately preceding seven years. 

2. Has not had an adverse disciplinary action taken against a professional license issued by another 
state or jurisdiction. 

3. Receives a grade of at least seventy-five percent on the Arizona jurisprudence examination. 

4. On making application, pays to the executive director of the board a nonrefundable fee of not 
more than five hundred dollars as established by the board. 

5. Pays the original license fee as prescribed by section 32-922. 

B. The applicant shall present proof satisfactory to the board that: 

1. A professional license of the applicant issued by any other state or jurisdiction has not been 
sanctioned for any cause that may be a basis of a sanction imposed by the board pursuant to this 
chapter, except for failure to pay fees. 

2. The applicant has not previously failed to pass the examination in this state. 

3. The applicant qualifies for licensure as prescribed in section 32-921, except the applicant is not 
required to submit proof of obtaining a passing score on part III or IV of the examination conducted 
by the national board of chiropractic examiners. 

C. An applicant under this section is not required to pay the fee prescribed in section 32-921, 
subsection D. 

 
 



Agenda Item 10C
Self-Inspection Regulations





 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 11 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 
D. CA Exam Stats – No action. 
E. Self-Inspection Results – No action 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 11 



AGENDA ITEM 11A

STATUS OF PENDING COMPLAINTS – April 16, 2020

Complaint No. Date Received Investigator Nature of Complaint Current Status Costs To Date

17-28S 9/12/2017 Colucci Failure to report malpractice claim Pending Settlement Agreement $180.00

18-13S 8/20/2018 Rovetti Allegedly practicing outside the scope of a physical therapist Under investigation

18-15S 9/25/2018 Canada Allegedly allowing staff to perform duties while absent from the office. Under Investigation $1,293.20

18-17S 11/2/2018 Canada Allegedly acting outside the scope of chiropractic Under investigation

19-03S 4/22/2019 Canada Allegedly allowing staff to perform duties while absent from the office. Under investigation

19-07S 8/2/2019 Colucci Allegedly provided an expert opinion out of the scope of a DC. Recommend dismissal

19-11S 9/16/2019 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct Under investigation

19-12S 9/18/2019 Rovetti Alleged unprofessional conduct Under investigation

19-13N 10/30/2019 Martinez Alleged unprofessional conduct (Sexual Harassment) Under investigation

19-14N 11/5/2019 Martinez Failure to maintain patient records Under investigation

19-16S 11/18/2019 Canada Alleged unprofessional conduct Under investigation

19-17S 11/19/2019 Canada Advertising as "Certified" without Board approval. Recommend dismissal

19-18N 12/2/2019 Martinez Alleged unprofessional conduct (Sexual Harassment) Under investigation $512.81

20-01N 1/3/2020 Rovetti Alleged unprofessional conduct-practicing below the standards of care/malpractice Under investigation

20-02S 1/27/2020 Colucci Failure to provide patient records Recommend dismissal

20-03N 2/26/2020 Rovetti Failure to provide patient recoreds Under investigation



AGENDA ITEM 11A

Complaint No. Date Received Investigator Nature of Complaint Current Status Costs To Date

20-04N 3/9/2020 Colucci Alleged unlicensed practice Under investigation

20-05S 3/9/2020 Colucci Charging for services provided by spouse who is not a CA Under investigation

20-06S 3/18/2020 Canada Failure to provide patient records Under investigation
DORMANT COMPLAINTS:

To be held in abeyance; to be addressed 
Unredeemable  “nsf” check written on Doctor's business account if the licensee requests reinstatement in 

11-23S 11/7/2011 the future
To be held in abeyance; to be addressed 

Possible malpractice if the licensee requests reinstatement in 
13-23N 9/30/2013 the future

Will be addressed if this individual 
18-03S 2/20/2018 Alleged unlicensed practice reappears in Nevada.



  AGENDA ITEM 11B 
 
 
STATUS OF CURRENT DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS at April 16, 2020             
 
Disciplinary Action with Probation 
 
1. Daniel Brady, DC, License No. B1391 
 By Settlement Agreement, Dr. Brady shall comply with all terms and conditions of the California 
Board’s Decision and Order dated April 24, 2012 (eff. May 24, 2012) which placed him on probation for 
five years with certain terms and conditions. He reimbursed the Board’s $325.00 costs on November 12, 
2012 and passed the Board’s jurisprudence examination with a score of 81%.  Dr. Brady returned to 
Active status and is no longer tolling as of February 2015. He is currently in compliance with the 
requirements of his probation. 
 
2. Casey D. Robinson, DC, License No. B1263 
 Dr. Robinson was granted a license on September 14, 2007 under the condition that he comply with 
all of the terms and conditions of his Agreement on Conditions for Licensure with California and monitoring 
of his practice by Board-appointed Compliance Monitor, Dr. Jeff Andrews.  Dr. Robinson’s 5-year 
probation with California commenced on February 14, 2006.  He was required to reimburse the California 
Board’s costs of $3,103.75 and serve 4 hours per month of community service for 2-1/2 years of his 
probation.  It was subsequently determined that Dr. Robinson did not comply with the terms and conditions 
of his agreement with California.  This was addressed at the June 4, 2011 meeting and a new Agreed 
Settlement was approved that extends his probation for another five years concurrent with and under the 
same terms and conditions as his settlement agreement with California.  Dr. Robinson was placed in tolling 
status effective November 18, 2015 and has a five year tolling limit.  Dr. Robinson is current and in 
compliance with the terms and conditions of his California probation per the California Board. 
 
3. Mark Rubin, DC, License No. B753 

On September 10, 2016 Dr. Rubin entered into a Settlement Agreement and Order with the Board.  
Dr. Rubin will be on probation for three years with a practice monitor who will assure compliance with the 
terms and conditions of the settlement agreement. Dr. Rubin shall provide documentation as noted in the 
Settlement Agreement and Order to the Investigating Board Member within the time frames identified.  Dr. 
Rubin was ordered to pay a fine in the amount of $1,500.00 and pay the Board’s costs in the amount of 
$2,500.00.   

Dr. Rubin appeared before the Board at its January 11, 2018 meeting and entered into an Order 
Modifying Settlement Agreement and Order.  All the terms and conditions in the SAO entered September 
10, 2016 shall remain in full force and effect, except he may pay the Board’s costs at the minimum rate of 
$50.00 per month and in lieu of paying the $1,500.00 fine he may perform 100 hours of community service, 
which he has completed with the People’s Autism Foundation.  Dr. Rubin’s probation terminated on 
September 10, 2019.  The current balance of the Board costs due is $800.00. 

 
4. David Stella, DC, License No. B753  

Dr. Stella entered an Order Imposing Discipline Pursuant to Supplemental Stipulation to Modify 
SAO on January 31, 2018.  Dr. Stella will be on probation for three years effective January 31, 2018.   Dr. 
Stella shall reimburse the Board $2,500.00 for Dr. Mortillaro's fees within 30 days, which he paid on 
January 18, 2018.  Dr. Stella shall pay a fine of $3,500 ($2,500.00 for the violation of his SAO and 
$1,000.00 for violation of his recordkeeping obligations) and board costs & fees in the amount of 
$1,280.00 within 60 days of the effective date of this order.  Within six months of the effective date of this 
Order, Dr. Stella shall provide the Board's office written evidence of satisfactory completion of eight 
hours of continuing education related to ethics and boundaries and four hours related to medical 
recordkeeping.  Dr. Stella has completed all stipulations of the Order with the exception of 
probation, which terminates on January 31, 2021. 

 
 

Disciplinary Actions with No Probation   



  
5. Francis Raines, DC, License No. B0187 

Under the March 12, 2013 Board Order, Dr. Raines shall be monitored by the Investigating Board 
Member, a chiropractic physician, and a mental health monitor for 24 months from the date he begins 
practicing, which occurred on December 8, 2015.  Dr. Raines’ wife is serving as the business and financial 
manager and is currently the only employee.   Dr. Raines was ordered to pay a fine in the amount of 
$20,000.00 and has been making monthly payments of $75.00 per month since May 30, 2013 and continues 
to do so.   The current balance is $15,121.00.  Dr. Raines is in compliance with the terms of the Order. 
 

 



11C
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD

Legal/Investigatory Costs

FY2020-2021 Year-To-Date
Costs Incurred January to date Fiscal Year 2020/2021

Advantage Group                                            - 0.00
Attorney General                                            - 0.00

Sub-Total 0.00 0.00
Staff Attorney                                     930.00 1,770.00

Total $                                  930.00 $     - $                          1, 770.00

Costs Reimbursed YTD Amount Paid Amount Owed
Mark Rubin, DC $                              1, 700.00 $                              800.00
James Overland Jr., DC $                              5, 920.98 $                        40,956.38

Totals $                               1,700.00 $                        41,756.38

No Activity Controller
-0- $                                    -

$                                        - $                                    -

Other Outstanding Items:



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 12 Board Counsel Report – For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Louis Ling, Esq. 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President  _X____ Secretary  __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 12 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13 – Discuss annual staff evaluation of the Executive Director and 
evaluation and possible pay increase of the Licensing Specialist - For possible action. (Note: The 
Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241 to consider the character, alleged 
misconduct, or professional competence of Ms. Canady). For possible action 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President  _X____ Secretary  __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item 13 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  40 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 

A. Complaint 17-28S (Colucci) 
B. Complaint 18-13S (Rovetti) 
C. Complaint 18-15S (Canada) 
D. Complaint 18-17S (Canada) 
E. Complaint 19-03S (Canada) 
F. Complaint 19-07S (Colucci) 
G. Complaint 19-11S (Colucci) 
H. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 
I. Complaint 19-13N (Martinez) 
J. Complaint 19-14N (Martinez) 
K. Complaint 19-16S (Canada) 
L. Complaint 19-17S (Canada) 
M. Complaint 19-18N  (Martinez) 
N. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 
O. Complaint 20-02S (Colucci) 
P. Complaint 20-03N (Rovetti) 
Q. Complaint 20-04N (Colucci) 
R. Complaint 20-05S (Colucci) 
S. Complaint 20-06S (Canada) 

 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President  _X____ Secretary  __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 

 
 
Agenda Item 14 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14A Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
A.  Complaint 17-28S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Present Settlement Agreement & Order. 
 
PREPARED BY: Maggie Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The Board was notified by the National Practitioners Data 
Bank that a DC settled a malpractice claim, which is to be reported to the Board by the DC 
within 15 days pursuant to NAC 634.425.  To date the DC has not notified the Board of this 
action.  The DC retained an attorney and the Settlement Agreement & Order will be delivered 
to the attorney. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14A 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14B Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
B.  Complaint 18-13S  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   This complaint originated with Farmers Insurance 
through the National Insurance Crime Bureau with respect to a Physical Therapy group.  The 
concern are the charges and the use of billing codes and what appears to possibly be a 
chiropractic adjustment. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14B 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14C Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
C.  Complaint 18-15S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC is allowing staff to 
perform unsupervised CA duties in the office. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14C 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14D Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
D.  Complaint 18-17S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the chiropractor is acting 
outside the scope of chiropractic. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14D 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14E Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
E.  Complaint 19-03S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC is allowing staff to 
perform unsupervised CA duties in the office. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14E 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14F Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
F. Complaint 19-07S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal. 
 
PREPARED BY: Maggie Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC provided an expert 
opinion outside of the scope of a chiropractic physician. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14F 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14G Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
G. Complaint 19-11S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Maggie Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. The 
patient records were requested, however the DC did not comply. A citation was issued via 
certified mail. 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14G 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14H Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
H. Complaint 19-12S  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14H 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14I Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
I.  Complaint 19-13N  (Dr. Martinez) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Xavier Martinez, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14I 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14J Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
J.  Complaint 19-14N  (Dr. Martinez) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Xavier Martinez, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The complainant alleged that patient records are not being 
properly documented. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14J 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14K Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
K. Complaint 19-16S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14K 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14L Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
L. Complaint 19-17S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal with a letter of caution. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14L 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14M Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
M. Complaint 19-18N  (Dr. Martinez) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Xavier Martinez, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14M 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14N Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
N. Complaint 20-01N  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14N 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14O Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
O.  Complaint 20-02S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal 
 
PREPARED BY: Maggie Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC is not releasing their 
patient records, however the records have now been provided. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14O 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14P Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
 
P.  Complaint 20-03S  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Complainant alleges that the DC will not release his wife’s 
records to him. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14P 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14Q Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
Q.  Complaint 20-04S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 
PREPARED BY: Maggie Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Complainant alleged that a DC is running an unlicensed 
practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14Q 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14R Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
R.  Complaint 20-05S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal 
 
PREPARED BY: Maggie Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14R 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14S Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
S.  Complaint 20-06S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleges that the DC will not release their 
patient records. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 14S 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 15 Public Interest Comments – No action 

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic NOT on 
today’s agenda and may be limited to 3 minutes 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action item. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes per person per topic 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The public may speak to the Board about any topic not on 
the agenda but no action may be taken.   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 15 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16 Adjournment – For possible action 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Adjourn the meeting. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: April 16, 2020 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The meeting should be formally adjourned when all matters 
on the agenda have been addressed. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President  _X____ Secretary  __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item 16 


	ADP1548.tmp
	BILL DRAFT LANGUAGE FOR 2021 SESSION FROM
	THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA
	(2) Licensed under this chapter; and
	(a) Is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education; or
	(a) Each odd-numbered year for a licensee; and
	(d) Submit all information required to complete the renewal,
	(d) Submit all information required to complete the renewal,
	For a set of mailing labels containing the names and addresses of the
	For each page of a list of continuing education courses that have been
	For a review by the Board of a course offered by a chiropractic school
	(d) Have malpractice insurance as may be required by the Board; and
	(a) Draw blood for diagnostic purposes; or
	(b) Gives false or forged evidence of any kind to the Board; or

	ADP9320.tmp
	(a) Is accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education; or

	ADP206D.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPAF63.tmp
	Sheet1




